

# Royal Blind Society (Corporate Conversion) Act 2003 No 64

[2003-64]



### **Status Information**

### **Currency of version**

Repealed version for 1 July 2005 to 7 July 2011 (accessed 23 December 2024 at 6:29)

Legislation on this site is usually updated within 3 working days after a change to the legislation.

### **Provisions in force**

The provisions displayed in this version of the legislation have all commenced.

### Notes-

### Repeal

The Act was to be repealed by proclamation under sec 5 (1) of the *Royal Blind Society (Merger) Act* 2005 No 87 but was repealed by Sch 4 to the *Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act* 2011 No 27 with effect from 8.7.2011.

### **Authorisation**

This version of the legislation is compiled and maintained in a database of legislation by the Parliamentary Counsel's Office and published on the NSW legislation website, and is certified as the form of that legislation that is correct under section 45C of the Interpretation Act 1987.

File last modified 8 July 2011

# Royal Blind Society (Corporate Conversion) Act 2003 No 64



# **Contents**

Long title	4
Part 1 Preliminary	4
1 Name of Act	4
2 Commencement	4
3 Definitions	4
4 (Repealed)	5
Part 2 Registration resolutions	6
5 What is a registration resolution?	6
6 Irregularities concerning registration resolutions	6
Part 3 Registration of Society as a public company	8
Division 1 Authorisation to transfer incorporation	8
7 Society may apply to be registered as a public company under Corporations Act 2001	8
Division 2 Compliance certificate	8
8 Attorney General may issue compliance certificate	8
Division 3 Provisions consequent on transfer of incorporation of t Society	he
	9
9 Registered Society is continuation of Society	9

Schedule 3 Savings, transitional and other provisions	13
Schedules 1, 2 (Repealed)	12
17 Savings, transitional and other provisions	12
16 (Repealed)	12
15 Exemption from State tax	12
14 Effect of this Act on contracts, instruments and related matters	12
13 Regulations	11
Part 4 Miscellaneous	11
12 Exclusion of Corporations legislation that applies to the registered Society as federal law	10
11 Registered Society is authorised to use existing name	10
	9
10 Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901 and by-laws cease to have effect on regist	ration day

# Royal Blind Society (Corporate Conversion) Act 2003 No 64



An Act to enable the Royal Blind Society of New South Wales to seek registration as a company limited by guarantee under the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth; to amend the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* to make further provision with respect to membership of the Society; and for other purposes.

# **Part 1 Preliminary**

### 1 Name of Act

This Act is the Royal Blind Society (Corporate Conversion) Act 2003.

### 2 Commencement

This Act commences on the date of assent to this Act.

### 3 Definitions

### (1) In this Act:

**ASIC** means the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

**by-laws** means the by-laws and rules of the Society in force under section 18 of the Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901.

**compliance certificate** means a certificate issued by the Attorney General under section 8 certifying that the provisions of this Act have been complied with concerning the transfer of the Society's incorporation to the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth.

**Corporations legislation** means the Corporations legislation to which Part 1.1A of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth applies.

**instrument** means an instrument (other than this Act or an instrument made under this Act) or any other document that creates, modifies or extinguishes rights or liabilities (or would do so if lodged, filed or registered in accordance with any law), and includes any judgment, order, process or other instrument issued by a court or

### tribunal.

#### Note-

Section 21 (1) of the *Interpretation Act 1987* provides that a reference in an Act to **document** means any record of information, and includes:

- (a) anything on which there is writing, or
- (b) anything on which there are marks, figures, symbols or perforations having a meaning for persons qualified to interpret them, or
- (c) anything from which sounds, images or writings can be reproduced with or without the aid of anything else, or
- (d) a map, plan, drawing or photograph.

invalidity order—see section 6 (2).

**members** of the Society means persons who are members of the Society under the Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901.

**registered Society** means the Society after it is registered as a public company limited by guarantee under Part 5B.1 of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth.

**registration day** means the day on which the Society is registered as a public company limited by guarantee under Part 5B.1 of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth.

### **Editorial note**—

Registration day: 5.2.2004. For further information see the Australian Securities and Investments Commission website at http://www.asic.gov.au.

**registration resolution**—see section 5.

**Society** means the Royal Blind Society of New South Wales constituted by the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901*.

- (2) If this Act provides for an event or other thing to occur on the registration day, that event or thing is taken to occur at the beginning of the day that is the registration day.
- (3) Words and expressions used in this Act have the same meanings as in section 9 of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth, except in so far as they are defined differently in this Act or the context or subject-matter otherwise indicates or requires.
- (4) Notes included in this Act do not form part of this Act.

### 4 (Repealed)

# **Part 2 Registration resolutions**

### 5 What is a registration resolution?

- (1) For the purposes of this Act, a **registration resolution** is a resolution passed in accordance with this section by the members of the Society at a general meeting of the Society that:
  - (a) resolves that the Society be registered as a public company limited by guarantee under the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth, and
  - (b) approves a constitution for the Society on its registration as a public company.
- (2) A constitution approved by a registration resolution may contain any matter that could be included in the constitution of a public company limited by guarantee under the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth.
- (3) A resolution is passed in accordance with this section only if:
  - (a) the resolution is passed by at least 50 per cent of the votes cast by the members of the Society (whether present in person or by proxy) who are qualified to vote at the general meeting, and
  - (b) subject to paragraph (a)—the general meeting at which the resolution is put is called and held in accordance with the provisions of the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* and the by-laws.
- (4) A registration resolution may be expressed to be subject to such conditions as may be specified in the resolution. If a registration resolution is subject to any such conditions, it does not have effect as a registration resolution for the purposes of any provision of this Act (other than this section) until the conditions are satisfied.
- (5) Nothing in this Act prevents a further proposal for a registration resolution being put to the members of the Society if:
  - (a) a previously proposed registration resolution was not passed or was declared to be invalid by order of the Supreme Court under section 6, or
  - (b) an application for registration under Part 5B.1 of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth was not made by the Society within the prescribed period applicable to the resolution under section 7.

### 6 Irregularities concerning registration resolutions

- (1) **Resolutions to which this section applies** This section applies to any registration resolution or purported registration resolution.
- (2) **Procedural irregularity does not invalidate resolution without court order** A resolution to which this section applies is not invalidated because of any procedural irregularity

- unless, on an application made under this section, the Supreme Court by order declares the resolution to be invalid (an *invalidity order*).
- (3) Who may apply for invalidity order An application to the Supreme Court for an invalidity order under this section may be made only if no fewer than 3 persons who were eligible to vote at the meeting at which the resolution was passed make the application.
- (4) **Time for application for order** Such an application can only be made to the Supreme Court within the period of one month commencing on the date of the passing of the resolution.
- (5) Parties to an application The parties to any such application are as follows:
  - (a) the applicants,
  - (b) the Society,
  - (c) the Attorney General.
- (6) When Supreme Court may make invalidity order The Supreme Court must not make an invalidity order unless it is of the opinion that:
  - (a) the irregularity was not, or was not the result of, an accidental omission or non-receipt of a notice required under the provisions of the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* or the by-laws, and
  - (b) the irregularity has caused or may cause substantial injustice.
- (7) Supreme Court may enjoin Attorney General issuing compliance certificate The Supreme Court may, of its own motion or on the application of a party to an application for an invalidity order in relation to a resolution, make an order that enjoins the Attorney General from issuing a compliance certificate in relation to the resolution until the application for the invalidity order is determined by the Court.
- (8) **Effect of invalidity order on compliance certificates** If the Supreme Court makes an invalidity order in relation to a resolution, the Attorney General cannot issue a compliance certificate in relation to the resolution.
- (9) **Rules of court may be made** Rules of court (not inconsistent with this Act or the regulations) may be made under the *Supreme Court Act 1970* for the purposes of this section. This subsection does not limit the rule-making powers conferred by the *Supreme Court Act 1970*.
- (10) **Meaning of procedural irregularity** In this section, a reference to a procedural irregularity includes a reference to:
  - (a) any defect, irregularity or deficiency of notice or time, and

(b) any miscalculation of voting entitlements.

# Part 3 Registration of Society as a public company

# **Division 1 Authorisation to transfer incorporation**

- 7 Society may apply to be registered as a public company under Corporations Act 2001
  - (1) The Society may apply to ASIC for the Society to be registered under Part 5B.1 of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth as a public company limited by guarantee, but only if a compliance certificate is issued by the Attorney General.
  - (2) An application under subsection (1) must be made:
    - (a) in accordance with the provisions of section 601BC of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth, and
    - (b) within the prescribed period applicable to the registration resolution.
  - (3) For the purposes of section 601BC (8) (d) of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth, the Society is authorised by this Act to transfer its incorporation in accordance with this Act.
  - (4) In this section:

### **prescribed period**, in relation to a registration resolution, means:

- (a) except as provided by paragraph (b)—the period of 12 months (or such other period as may be prescribed by the regulations, whether before or after the resolution is passed or before or after the 12-month period expires) commencing on the day on which the resolution is passed, or
- (b) if an application for an invalidity order under section 6 is duly made but is refused or withdrawn after the end of the period referred to in paragraph (a) that is applicable to the resolution—the period of one month commencing on the date on which the application is finally determined or withdrawn (as the case may be).

# **Division 2 Compliance certificate**

### 8 Attorney General may issue compliance certificate

- (1) The Attorney General may issue a compliance certificate to the Society that certifies that the provisions of this Act have been complied with concerning the transfer of its incorporation to the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth if the Attorney General is satisfied that:
  - (a) a registration resolution has been passed, and
  - (b) the period specified in section 6 for the making of an application for an invalidity

order in respect of the resolution has expired, and

- (c) an invalidity order has not been made by the Supreme Court under section 6 in respect of the resolution.
- (2) The Attorney General is to provide ASIC with a copy of the compliance certificate issued under this section as soon as practicable after it is issued to the Society. However, a failure to provide such a copy does not affect the validity of the certificate.
- (3) A compliance certificate issued under this section cannot be challenged, reviewed or called into question in proceedings before any court or tribunal.
- (4) A compliance certificate issued under this section is conclusive evidence in any proceedings before a court or tribunal that all the requirements of this Act have been complied with concerning the transfer of the incorporation of the Society to the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth as a public company limited by guarantee.
- (5) The Attorney General cannot issue a certificate under this section in relation to a registration resolution if the Attorney General is enjoined from doing so by the Supreme Court under section 6 (7).

# Division 3 Provisions consequent on transfer of incorporation of the Society

## 9 Registered Society is continuation of Society

(1) Section 601BM of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth makes provision for the legal consequences of the registration of a body corporate as a company under Part 5B.1 of that Act.

### Note-

Section 601BM of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth provides that the registration of a body as a company under Part 5B.1 of that Act does not:

- (a) create a new legal entity, or
- (b) affect the body's existing property, rights or obligations (except as against the members of the body in their capacity as members), or
- (c) render defective any legal proceedings by or against the body or its members.
- (2) A reference in any instrument (other than the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901*) to the Society is to be read on and after the registration day as including a reference to the registered Society.

# 10 Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901 and by-laws cease to have effect on registration day

(1) The provisions of the Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901 and the by-

laws cease to have effect on the registration day.

#### Note-

Section 30 of the *Interpretation Act 1987* provides that the repeal of an Act or statutory rule does not, among other things, affect the previous operation of the Act or statutory rule or anything duly suffered, done or commenced under the Act or statutory rule or affect any right, privilege, obligation or liability acquired, accrued or incurred under the Act or statutory rule. The section provides that a reference to the repeal of an Act or statutory rule in that section includes a reference to the abrogation, limitation or extension of the effect of the Act or rule.

(2) The Governor may, by proclamation published in the Gazette, repeal the *Royal Blind*Society of New South Wales Act 1901 and the by-laws on or after the registration day.

### Editorial note—

Date of repeal of the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* and the by-laws: 16.4.2004. See proclamation published in Gazette No 74 of 16.4.2004, p 2091.

### 11 Registered Society is authorised to use existing name

- (1) The registered Society is authorised to use the name "Royal Blind Society of New South Wales" as its corporate name without the word "Limited" being included in that name.
- (2) Nothing in subsection (1) prevents the registered Society from changing its name in accordance with the provisions of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth to include the word "Limited" in its name.
- (3) Subsection (1) has effect for only so long as the registered Society retains the name "Royal Blind Society of New South Wales".
- (4) Subsection (1) is declared to be a Corporations legislation displacement provision for the purposes of section 5G of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth in relation to the provisions of Part 2B.6 of that Act.

### Note-

Section 5G (6) of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth provides that the provisions of Part 2B.6 and Part 5B.3 of that Act (which relate to the use of names) do not:

- (a) prohibit a company or other body from using a name if the use of the name is expressly provided for, or authorised by, a provision of a law of a State or Territory, or
- (b) require a company or other body to use a word as part of its name if the company or body is expressly authorised not to use that word by a provision of a law of a State or Territory.

However, section 5G (3) of that Act provides that section 5G will only apply to a provision of a law of a State or Territory enacted after the commencement of that Act if a law of the State or Territory declares the provision to be a Corporations legislation displacement provision for the purposes of that section.

# 12 Exclusion of Corporations legislation that applies to the registered Society as federal law

(1) Application of section This section enables the regulations to exclude the operation of

provisions of the Corporations legislation that would otherwise apply to the registered Society (or a matter relating to the registered Society) as a law of the Commonwealth.

- (2) **Declarations under section 5F of Corporations Act 2001** The regulations may declare any matter relating to the registered Society (other than a declared matter) to be an excluded matter for the purposes of section 5F of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth in relation to:
  - (a) the whole of the Corporations legislation, or
  - (b) a specified provision of that legislation, or
  - (c) that legislation other than a specified provision, or
  - (d) that legislation otherwise than to a specified extent.

#### Note-

Section 5F of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth provides that if a State law declares a matter to be an excluded matter for the purposes of that section in relation to all or part of the Corporations legislation of the Commonwealth, the provisions that are the subject of the declaration will not apply in relation to that matter in the State concerned.

(3) **Declarations under section 5G of Corporations Act 2001** The regulations may declare any provision of this Act relating to the registered Society (other than a declared provision) to be a Corporations legislation displacement provision for the purposes of section 5G of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth (either generally or specifically in relation to a provision of the Corporations legislation).

### Note-

Section 5G of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth provides that if a State law declares a provision of a State law to be a Corporations legislation displacement provision, any provision of the Corporations legislation with which the State provision would otherwise be inconsistent does not apply to the extent necessary to avoid the inconsistency.

(4) **Definitions** In this section:

**declared matter** means a matter that is declared to be an excluded matter for the purposes of section 5F of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth by another provision of this Act.

**declared provision** means a provision of this Act that is declared to be a Corporations legislation displacement provision for the purposes of section 5G of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth by another provision of this Act.

### Part 4 Miscellaneous

### 13 Regulations

The Governor may make regulations, not inconsistent with this Act, for or with respect to

any matter that by this Act is required or permitted to be prescribed or that is necessary or convenient to be prescribed for carrying out or giving effect to this Act.

### 14 Effect of this Act on contracts, instruments and related matters

The operation of this Act (and, in particular, Schedule 3) is not to be regarded as:

- (a) a breach of contract or confidence or otherwise as a civil wrong, or
- (b) a breach of any instrument (including, without limitation, any provision prohibiting, restricting or regulating the assignment or transfer of assets or liabilities), or
- (c) an event of default under any contract or other instrument, or
- (d) giving rise to any remedy by a party to a contract or other instrument, or as causing or permitting the termination of, or exercise of rights under, any contract or other instrument.

### 15 Exemption from State tax

(1) In this section:

**exempt matter** means any of the following:

- (a) the registration of the Society as a company under Part 5B.1 of the *Corporations*Act 2001 of the Commonwealth,
- (b) such other matters in connection with this Act as may be prescribed by the regulations.

**State tax** means application or registration fees, duty under the *Duties Act 1997* or any other tax, duty, fee or charge imposed by any Act or law of the State.

- (2) State tax is not payable in relation to:
  - (a) an exempt matter, or
  - (b) anything done because of, or for a purpose connected with or arising out of, an exempt matter.

### 16 (Repealed)

### 17 Savings, transitional and other provisions

Schedule 3 has effect.

### Schedules 1, 2 (Repealed)

## Schedule 3 Savings, transitional and other provisions

(Section 17)

### Part 1 General

### 1 Regulations

(1) The regulations may contain provisions of a savings or transitional nature consequent on the enactment of the following Acts:

this Act

- (2) Any such provision may, if the regulations so provide, take effect from the date of assent to the Act concerned or a later date.
- (3) To the extent to which any such provision takes effect from a date that is earlier than the date of its publication in the Gazette, the provision does not operate so as:
  - (a) to affect, in a manner prejudicial to any person (other than the State or an authority of the State), the rights of that person existing before the date of its publication, or
  - (b) to impose liabilities on any person (other than the State or an authority of the State) in respect of anything done or omitted to be done before the date of its publication.

### Part 2 Provisions consequent on enactment of this Act

### 2 Certain existing members of Society cease to hold membership

- (1) Subject to subclause (2), any person who was a member of the Society immediately before the commencement of this Act ceases to be a member of the Society on that commencement.
- (2) Subclause (1) does not apply to a person referred to in section 5 (1) (a) of the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* (as inserted by Schedule 1 [2] to this Act).
- (3) A person who ceases to be a member of the Society by operation of subclause (1) is not entitled to damages or any other compensation by reason of ceasing to be a member.
- (4) Nothing in this clause prevents a person who has ceased to be a member of the Society by operation of subclause (1) from being admitted as a member under section 5 of the *Royal Blind Society of New South Wales Act 1901* (as inserted by Schedule 1 [2] to this Act).
- (5) The provisions of this clause are in addition to, and do not derogate from, the provisions of section 14 (Effect of this Act on contracts, instruments and related

Royal Blind Society (Corporate Conversion) Act 2003 No 64 [NSW]		
	matters).	